St. Jane de Chantal Church

A History of Giving

In 1950, Msgr. (then-Father) James Caulfield was asked by then Archbishop O’Boyle to found St. Jane de Chantal Parish to support the growing Bethesda Catholic Community. Most of the families had been attending Our Lady of Lourdes. Several years earlier, the Archdiocese had purchased an 8.48 acre plot including a stone farmhouse (the present rectory) where the original Magruder family had lived. The $69,000.00 cost and debt immediately transferred to the parish! 
The parish's original 267 families worshipped in the monastery chapel of the Sisters of the Visitation, with the 1st mass being celebrated on October 22, 1950, on what is now part of the NIH campus. The tiny chapel did its best to accommodate the worshippers, but the parish just grew and grew with people seeping into the monastery parlors and front steps.

In his first letter to his parishioners, Father Caulfield thanked them for their warm welcome and announced that he would also be their chief financial officer with the responsibility to collect, by begging, if necessary, the funds required to build a church and school. He immediately instituted a monthly collection, for “IBM” (Interest-Building-Maintenance), and from those humble beginnings De Chantal’s rich history of parishioner stewardship began! 
In building the parish both literally and figuratively, Father Caulfield was determined that funds would come not only from weekly offerings but also from parish activities that would build community while bringing in necessary capital. To do that, he knew on whom to rely: the women of the parish! The Sodality Guild was established on January 23, 1951 and immediately instituted a number of fundraising efforts which included a bake sale, a Rummage Sale, a Doll Raffle, and a “Garden Party” at the rectory to raise over $5,000 in their first year. The famous Sodality Fashion Show, which still goes on today, began in the spring of 1952 and the foundations of the current Communion Breakfast and Plant Sale were also laid in 1951. In 1953, a “chance off a car” (car raffle) for a 1954 Blue Thunderbird raised significant funds. The Sodality also organized both an autumn and Spring Festival (the Spring Festival was often held at the Willard Hotel) as well as an annual week long Spring Bazaar which, by 1957, included a Ferris wheel, Merry Go Round and Game Booths. In her trademark straightforward manner, Marian Kiger, long time parish secretary, stated: “The Women Built the Parish”

With this dynamo firmly behind him, Father Caulfield then went about the business of building it! In August of 1952, he was able to purchase a 4 acre adjacent plot for $20,000 with the intention of converting the 100 year old, 2 story stucco farm house (there was also a small barn, chicken house and smoke house), into a school. In October of 1952, he announced that the religious education students, who previously had been cramming into the Visitation Monastery to be taught by the Sisters of the Holy Cross, would move to the new “Parish Activities House”. The Ursiline sisters from the nearby Ursiline Academy agreed to staff the classes. 
Encouraged by excellent response of parishioners, Archbishop O’Boyle approved a building program. Phillip Huber Frohman, architect of the National Cathedral, submitted plans which included a cathedral, great hall, convent and school. By 1952, the front cover of the church bulletin showed an artist’s sketch of the “future school hall” which eventually became the church instead! In May of 1953, a bid to build the hall, convent and some classrooms for $185,000 was accepted. Ground was broken on the “hall” on June 15, 1953 and the names of the students in De Chantal’s incoming 1st grade class (including Betsy Maher Hamilton), were placed in cornerstone.
Also in May of 1953, Father Caulfield traveled to Greensburg, PA to discuss opening a school with Sisters of Charity, who had taught him in his youth.  On August 24, 1953, Sister Ida Marie McCarthy, Sister Teresina Bridges, and Sister Grace Marie Hurd visited the White House and moved in on 9/4/53 although the house was not yet ready (parishioners were still working on it when they got there). St. Jane de Chantal School was born on 9/15/53 when 48 “Pioneer Children” entered the 1st grade.  The two “classrooms” were in adjoining rooms on the 1st floor with no dividers and not enough desks, while the sisters lived on the 2nd floor and shred their 1 bathroom with the students. A half Day Kindergarten was soon added in the nun’s Community Room.
On May 7, 1954, the first Mass was celebrated in the “future school hall” which for the immediate future was being used as a 300 seat church. The classes for the 1954-1955 school year (in a school that now had 203 students) were moved to the lower hall, and the students had to move their desks and materials whenever the hall needed to be used for a parish event.

The next items on the agenda were a new school and convent. Bids were solicited and ground was broken in April of 1956. In December of 1956, the 1st phase of the school, consisting of “10 classrooms, a principal’s office and lavatories”, was completed. With over 200 students entering the school per year, plans for a 2nd phase were already underway, but first there was the issue of housing the ever-growing faculty of Sisters of Charity. The new Convent (presently the Seton Center) was completed in May of 1967 and the sisters noted that their beds, which had been assembled by the 4th grade class, held together! Both the school and the convent were dedicated on May 5, 1957.
Construction of the 2nd phase of the school, consisting of 10 more classrooms starting from the principal’s office along Old Georgetown Road and then turning east, was delayed, causing the students in the 59/60 school year to have half days until its completion in November of 1959. Finally, the 3rd and final wing of the school, consisting of 4 additional classrooms and a library, was begun in May of 1961 just before De Chantal’s First 8th Grade Class was scheduled to graduate. By that time, the school’s enrollment had grown to 1,150 students!

In 1963, now Monsignor Caulfield received the 1st recorded request to build a gym for the school’s ever-expanding CYO sports programs, to which he responded: “Here at De Chantal we have a gymnasium; we are using it for a church. When a parish church is built the parish hall will revert to the use for which it was designed (noting the high ceilings)”.
With the School and Convent now complete, talk of finally building the actual church began anew in 1962. However, with the priests jammed into the original Magruder farmhouse that had served as the Rectory since 1950 with no offices, meeting rooms, modern kitchen facility, or private space, it became clear that there was (once again) a more pressing need for an expansion of the rectory and thus funds were raised for its addition which was completed in November of 1967. With the rectory expansion behind him, Monsignor once again began planning to finally raise funds to build a church. In response to a 1969 letter from a parishioner asking: “When are you going to stop asking parishioners to give?” Monsignor replied “When God stops giving to you.”
The hopes for a permanent church seemed to have been revived in 1971 when the Parish Council voted for it, but this hope ran up against some difficult realities. Monsignor Caulfield, our dynamic founder and only pastor to date, grew ill and ultimately died in his beloved rectory in 1973. Monsignor Walsh, who had taken over duties as Pastor the previous fall, died suddenly a mere 2 ½ weeks later. Msgr. Martin Christopher, after whom our present gym is named, guided our flock from 1973 until 1987 during a time of declining school and parish enrollment and increased expense. It was ultimately determined that a renovation of the existing space, including new sanctuary furniture and the installation of our first stained glass windows in what was at the time the front of the church, was more financially feasible and occurred in the late 1970s. Monsignor Christopher’s pastorate was  followed by a brief stint by Monsignor John J. Scanlon (1987-1990) followed by Msgr. John Madigan (1990-1995), whose final year included a 6 month sabbatical and reassignment , leading to a 6 month period of pastoral guardianship.
This was the state of affairs when James Cardinal Hickey appointed Monsignor Donald Essex as De Chantal’s 6th pastor effective June 7, 1995 He came at the Cardinal’s bidding initially to build a suitable physical plant and support its educational ministries.  After getting the parish back on track financially, he galvanized efforts to improve the physical plant.  He commissioned a feasibility study which recommended enlarging the church and building a multi-purpose facility. While Monsignor Caulfield had proudly noted back in 1969 that he had raised $1,100,000.00 without an organized fund-raising campaign, Monsignor Essex recognized that present day economics would not support such an approach.  In September of 1997, the parish launched a Capital Campaign seeking to raise $9.5 Million dollars for construction of a Multi-purpose facility and new church. Through the efforts of many of our past and some of our present parishioners, the Groundbreaking for what is now Christopher Hall began on 6/14/98 and was completed in August 1999. In a type of poetic symmetry, the school hall was then used as our church so that construction could commence on the construction of our present $3.5 Million, 750 seat worship space which was completed and dedicated in 2001. 
In the midst of this project, an opportunity arose in 2000 to purchase the adjoining residential lot to the south of the school, which presented a unique opportunity to increase our campus footprint for the first time in 48 years and to provide a buffer and some much needed open space between the neighborhood and the school. While this was a wise decision and the space presently serves (in a limited capacity) the purpose intended, it did divert some of the Campaign assets from potential enhancements of the church and Caulfield Hall that may otherwise have occurred at that time.
Which brings us to today. It is time for all of us, who have enjoyed the fruits of the efforts described for all these many years, to take our turn and finish the job that they have started! Armed with the knowledge of this incredible legacy of giving, welcome to the next phase: “Forever de Chantal!
 
